CITY OF ONTARIO
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD

AGENDA

March 1, 2021

All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located in City Hall
at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA 91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM VIA ZOOM

Scott Ochoa, City Manager

Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Community Development Agency
John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development

James Caro, Building Official

Rudy Zeledon, Planning Director

Khoi Do, City Engineer

Chief Michael Lorenz, Police Department

Fire Marshal Mike Gerken, Fire Department

Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager

Robin Lucero, Community Improvement Director

SPECIAL AND URGENT NOTICE ELIMINATING IN-PERSON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
AT CITY OF ONTARIO DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETINGS

In accordance with the Governor’s Declarations of Emergency for the State of California (Executive
Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20) and the Governor’s Stay at Home Order (Executive Order N-33-20),
the Ontario DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD Meetings are being conducted via Zoom
Conference and there will be no members of the public in attendance at the upcoming meeting of
the City of Ontario Development Advisory Board. In place of in-person attendance, members of the
public can observe and offer comment at this meeting remotely in the following ways:

TO VIEW THE MEETING:




e VISIT THE CITY’S WEBSITE AT THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:
ontarioca.gov/agendas/dab

e THE LINK FOR THE ZOOM CONFERENCE MEETING WILL BE LISTED AT THE
WEBSITE ADDRESS ABOVE.

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. PROVIDE PUBLIC TESTIMONY DURING THE MEETING: Submit your request to speak
no later than 12:00 PM the day of the meeting by either (1) emailing your name, telephone
number, agenda item you are commenting on, and your comment to
planningdirector@ontarioca.gov or (2) by completing the Comment Form on the City’s
website at: ontarioca.gov/agendas/dab.

Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. If a large number of individuals wish to speak on an item,
the Development Advisory Board Chairman may limit the time for individuals wishing to speak
to 3 minutes in order to provide an opportunity for more people to be heard. Speakers will be
alerted when their time is up, and no further comments will be permitted.

2. COMMENT BY E-MAIL: Submit your comments by email no later than 12:00 PM on the
day of the meeting by emailing your name, agenda item you are commenting on, and your
comment to planningdirector@ontarioca.gov . All comments received by the deadline will
be forwarded to the Development Advisory Board for consideration before action is taken
on the matter.

3. COMMENT BY TELEPHONE: Submit your comments by telephone no later than 12:00
PM on the day of the meeting by providing your name, agenda item you are commenting
on, and your comment by calling (909) 395-2036. All comments received by the deadline
will be provided to the Development Advisory Board for consideration before action is taken
on the matter.

4. COMMENT BY MAIL: To submit your comments by mail, provide your name, agenda
item you are commenting on, and your comment by mailing to Planning Department,
Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764. Comments by mail must be
actually received by the Planning Department no later than 12:00 PM on the day of the
meeting. Postmarks are not accepted. All comments received by the deadline will be
provided to the Development Advisory Board for consideration before action is taken on the
matter.

LOCATION WHERE DOCUMENTS MAY BE VIEWED: All documents for public review are on
file in the Planning Department located at 303 E. B Street, Ontario, CA 91764.

The City of Ontario will gladly accommodate disabled persons wishing to communicate at a public
meeting. Should you need any type of special equipment or assistance in order to communicate at a
public meeting, please inform the Planning Department at (909) 395-2036, a minimum of 72 hours
prior to the scheduled meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the agenda
may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and limit your remarks
to five minutes.



http://www.ontarioca.gov/agendas/dab
mailto:planningdirector@ontarioca.gov
http://www.ontarioca.gov/agendas/dab
mailto:planningdirector@ontarioca.gov

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members cannot
respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming agenda.

AGENDA ITEMS

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak. After a staff report is
provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes
to make a presentation on the case. Members of the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak.
The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided.
The question period will not count against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be
allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close the public

hearing portion of the hearing and deliberate the matter.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

A. MINUTES APPROVAL
Development Advisory Board Minutes of February 17, 2021, approved as written.
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR

FILE NO. PMTT20-010 (TPM 20273): A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20273) to subdivide
366.65 gross acres of land into 22 numbered lots and 22 lettered lots bordered by Eucalyptus
Avenue to the north, Carpenter Avenue to the east, Merrill Avenue to the south, and Grove Avenue
to the west, within the Business Park and Industrial land use districts of the Merrill Commerce
Center Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with PGPA18-003 and PSP18-001 regarding the Merrill Commerce Center Specific
Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2019049079) was
certified by the City Council on February 2, 2021. This application introduces no new significant
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of
Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project
site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies
and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published
by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics; (APNs: 1054-111-01;
1054-111-02; 1054-121-01; 1054-121-02; 1054-131-01; 1054-131-02; 1054-141-01; 1054-141-02;
1054-151-01; 1054-151-02; 1054-161-01; 1054-161-02; 1054-161-03; 1054-171-01; 1054-171-02;
1054-171-03; 1054-171-04; 1054-181-01; 1054-181-02; 1054-191-01; 1054-191-02; 1054-201-01;
1054-201-02; 1054-211-01, 1054-211-02; 1054-221-01; 1054-221-02; 1054-331-01; 1054-331-02;
1054-341-01; 1054-341-02; 1054-351-01; 1054-351-02; 1054-361-01; 1054-361-02; 1073-111-01;
1073-111-02; 1073-111-03; 1073-111-04; 1073-111-05; 1073-111-06). Submitted by Prologis.
Planning Commission action is required.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — use of previous EIR

2. File No. PMTT20-010 (TPM 20273) (Tentative Parcel Map)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

If you wish to appeal a decision of the Development Advisory Board, you must do so within ten (10) days
of the Development Advisory Board action. Please contact the Planning Department for information

3




If you challenge any action of the Development Advisory Board in court, you may be limited to raising
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written
correspondence delivered to the Development Advisory Board at, or prior to, the public hearing.

The next Development Advisory Board meets on March 15, 2021.
I, Gwen Berendsen, Administrative Assistant of the City of Ontario, or my designee, hereby certify that a

true, accurate copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on or before February 25, 2021, at least 72 hours
prior to the meeting per Government Code Section 54954.2 at 303 East “B” Street, Ontario.

_ﬂammﬁiw




CITY OF ONTARIO
Development Advisory Board
Minutes

February 17, 2021

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT VIA ZOOM

Rudy Zeledon, Planning Department

James Caro, Building Department

Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency
Mike Gerken, Fire Department

Khoi Do, Engineering Department

Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company

Elda Zavala, Community Improvement

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT

Gabe Gutierrez, Police Department

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT VIA ZOOM

Antonio Alejos, Engineering Department
Alexis Vaughn, Planning Department
Edmelynne Hutter, Planning Department

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Mr. Zeledon stated no public comment correspondence was received.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion to approve the minutes of the January 20, 2021, meeting
of the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Mr. Gerken; and approved
unanimously by those present (5-0). Ms. Zavala and Mr. Aly recused themselves, as they were not
at that meeting.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE

NO. PDEV20-019: A Development Plan to construct 102 single-family dwellings on 19.7 acres of
land located at the northwest corner of Chino Avenue and Haven Avenue, within the PA4 — Single
Family Residential and Park land use districts of the West Haven Specific Plan. The environmental
impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File No. PSP03-006, the West
Haven Specific Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No.
2004071095) was certified by the City Council on January 16, 2007. This application introduces
no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with

ltemA-10f2



Development Advisory Board
Minutes — February 17, 2021
Page 2

(ALUCP); (APN: 0218-151-11) submitted by KB Home Coastal, Inc. Planning Commission
action is required.
The applicant Heidi McBroom with KB Homes, was present via teleconference.
Mr. Zeledon asked if she had reviewed the Conditions of Approval and agreed with them.
Ms. McBroom stated ves, she agreed with them.
Mr. Zeledon stated no public correspondence was received for this item.
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV20-019, subject to conditions to the Planning
Commission was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Ms. Zavala; and approved unanimously by those present
(7-0).
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned to the next meeting on March 1, 2021.
Respectfully submitted,

Mimppandesn

Gwen Berendsen
Recording Secretary

ltemA-20f2



Development Advisory Board Decision
March 1, 2021

DECISION NO.: [insert #]
FILE NO.: PMTT20-010
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20273) to subdivide 366.65 gross acres of land into

22 numbered lots and 22 lettered lots bordered by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north, Carpenter Avenue to
the east, Merrill Avenue to the south, and Grove Avenue to the west, within the SP/AG (Specific
Plan/Agricultural Overlay) zoning districts. The environmental impacts of this project were previously
reviewed in conjunction with PGPA18-003 and PSP18-001, for which an Environmental Impact Report
(State Clearing House No. 2019049079) was certified by the City Council on February 2, 2021; (APNs:
1054-111-01; 1054-111-02; 1054-121-01; 1054-121-02; 1054-131-01; 1054-131-02; 1054-141-01; 1054-
141-02; 1054-151-01; 1054-151-02; 1054-161-01; 1054-161-02; 1054-161-03; 1054-171-01; 1054-171-02;
1054-171-03; 1054-171-04; 1054-181-01; 1054-181-02; 1054-191-01; 1054-191-02; 1054-201-01; 1054-
201-02; 1054-211-01, 1054-211-02; 1054-221-01; 1054-221-02; 1054-331-01; 1054-331-02; 1054-341-01;
1054-341-02; 1054-351-01; 1054-351-02; 1054-361-01; 1054-361-02; 1073-111-01; 1073-111-02; 1073-
111-03; 1073-111-04; 1073-111-05; and 1073-111-06); submitted by Prologis L.P.

Part —BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

PROLOGIS L.P., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”’) has filed an application requesting
Development Plan approval, File No. PMTT20-010, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after
referred to as "Application" or "Project").

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 366.65 acres of land located at the
northeast corner of Merrill and Grove Avenues, within the SP/AG (Specific Plan/Agricultural Overlay) zoning
district, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and
zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows:

Existing Land Use %‘Z’;ZZ;Z?: Zoning Designation S;;_(:c:ZcUI:I:ln
. : . Merrill Commerce
. Agnculture., Dairy, Business Park (O.'6 Specific Plan / Center Specific Plan
Site Truck Terminal, and FAR) and Industrial . :
Agricultural Overlay (effective March 18,
vacant (0.55 FAR)
2021)
Mixed Use (NMC
. . West) and Medium Specific Plan /
North Agriculture and Dairy Density Residential Agricultural Overlay N/A
(11.1 — 25 du/ac)
AD (Airport
Chino Airport, . Development), M2
Agriculture, and Public and Qeneral (General Industrial),
South : Industrial . N/A
Industrial (City of Chino) and Airport Overlay
(City of Chino) y District
(City of Chino)
Page 1

Item B - 1 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

o General Plan . . . Specific Plan
Existing Land Use Designation Zoning Designation Land Use
. Business Park (0.6 :
East '”Sé‘rf;rt'fdétﬁ’;:)er FAR) and Industrial Specific Plan COVn\qlemS;rS:tggzter
(0.55 FAR)
Low Medium Density
West Dairy Residential (5.1 — 11 Specific Plan / N/A

du/ac) and Business | Agricultural Overlay
Park (0.6 FAR),

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — On February 2, 2021, the City Council approved the introduction
(first reading) of Ordinance No. 3178 for the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan (“MCCSP”), adopted
Resolution No. R2021-011, certifying the MCCSP Final Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”; State
Clearinghouse No. 2019049047), and adopted Resolution No. R2021-012, approving the associated
General Plan Amendment (File No. PGPA18-003) establishing the Business Park (0.6 FAR) and Industrial
(0.55 FAR) land uses on the project site. On February 16, 2021, the City Council adopted (second reading)
Ordinance No. 3178, approving the MCCSP (File No. PSP18-001). The MCCSP establishes the land use
designations, development standards, and design guidelines on 376.3 acres of land, which includes the
potential development of up to 8,455,000 square feet of industrial and business park development. The
ordinance approving the MCCSP will be enacted on March 18, 2021, following the 30-day referendum
period mandated by State law (Elections Code Section 9235 et seq.).

On October 21, 2020, the applicant submitted a Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT20-010) to facilitate
the future construction of industrial buildings totaling 6,266,502 square feet and business park buildings
totaling 1,074,566 square feet (See Exhibit B—Tentative Parcel Map No. 20273, attached). If approved by
the Planning Commission, Tentative Parcel Map approval will not be final and conclusive until the City
Council ordinance approving the MCCSP has been enacted.

Development plans showing building layout, architectural design, landscaping, parking, etc. for the Project
site will be submitted and processed at a later date for Development Advisory Board and Planning
Commission consideration.

(b) Tentative Parcel Map — The proposed Tentative Parcel Map will subdivide the
Project site into 22 numbered lots and 22 lettered lots (see Exhibit B-Tentative Parcel Map, attached) to
facilitate the construction of 10 industrial buildings and 11 business park buildings totaling 7,341,068 square
feet. The parcels range in size from 3.62 to 59.32 acres, as shown in the Tentative Parcel Map Summary
Table (Exhibit C). The minimum parcel size required for the Business Park and Industrial land use district
is one acre.

(c) Site Access/Circulation — The Project site will be accessible from the four
perimeter streets of Eucalyptus, Merrill, Carpenter, and Grove Avenues, which will all be widened and/or
improved as part of future development of the Project. Street extensions, such as Vineyard Avenue, Walker
Avenue, Baker Avenue, and the proposed “Street A,” will provide additional access to interior areas of the
Project site.

(d) Parking — All future land uses will be required to meet all Development Code and
MCCSP parking standards and regulations.

Page 2

Iltem B - 2 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

(e) Architecture — All future building designs shall be required to incorporate a
Contemporary Architectural style, as required in the MCCSP. In addition, equipment and loading/dock areas
will be screened from public view in accordance with Specific Plan requirements.

(f) Chino Airport Land Use Compatibly Compliance — The project site is located
within the Chino Airport Influence Area (AlA). Pursuant to the California Airport Land Use Planning
Handbook, the project site is located within Safety Zones 1 (Runway Protection Zone), 2 (Inner/Approach
Departure Zone), 3 (Inner Turning Zone), 4 (Outer Approach/Departure Zone), and 6 (Traffic
Pattern/Overflight Zones), as shown on Exhibit D — Chino Airport Safety Zones, attached. Safety Zone 1
occupies portions of Parcels 2, 3, and 4, which prohibits the construction of any buildings or structures. The
remaining portion of the project site is impacted by a combination of Safety Zones 2, 3, 4, and 6, which are
subject to intensity limits (number people on the site) and open land criteria requirements. Future
Development shall be required to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Caltrans Division of
Aeronautics — California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook.

(9) Landscaping — The MCCSP requires a minimum 10 percent landscape coverage
be provided for buildings within the Industrial and Business Park land use districts. All future development
applications will be required to comply with the minimum 10 percent landscape coverage, in addition to
right-of-way landscape and neighborhood edge landscape requirements. The proposed lettered lots
associated with this Project will be developed with landscaping and a Community Facilities District will be
established to ensure these areas are properly maintained.

(h) Sighage — The Merrill Commerce Center will be required to establish a
comprehensive sign program and all future signage will be subject to the sign program and Development
Code. The sign program will facilitate integration of the signs with the overall site and building design to
create a unified visual statement and provide for flexible application of sign regulations in the design and
display of multiple signs. Key provisions will include an entry monument, center and tenant identification
signage, traffic and wayfinding signs, building signs, secondary monumentation, and visitor and directional
signage.

(i) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — To serve the future industrial developments, the
Project will be required to construct infrastructure improvements per the Development Agreement (File No.
PDA18-004) and requirements of the MCCSP. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary
Water Quality Management Plan (“PWQMP”), which establishes the Project’s compliance with storm water
discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and
pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and maximizes low impact development (“LID”) best
management practices (“BMPs”), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration.
The PWQMP proposes the use of landscape areas designed as swales and grade to accept runoff,
underground storm water retention chambers where downstream landscape areas are limited, surface
retention basins to receive impervious area runoff and installation of storm water drywells in detention
areas.

Part I—RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study and Environmental Impact Report
(EIR) have been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State
Clearinghouse No. 2019049079) was certified by the City Council on February 2, 2021, (“Certified EIR”) in
conjunction with File Nos. PGPA18-003 and PSP18-001, in which development and use of the Project site
was discussed; and

Page 3

Iltem B - 3 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were thoroughly analyzed in the Certified
EIR, which concluded that implementation of the Project could result in a number of significant effects on
the environment and identified mitigation measures that would reduce some of those significant effects to
a less-than-significant level and adopted a Statement of Overriding Considerations for those impacts that
would be significant and unavoidable; and

WHEREAS, the City's “Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA)” provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development
Advisory Board (hereinafter referred to as “DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make
recommendation to the Planning Commission on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development;
and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and
policies of the Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport,
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County,
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport
activity; and

WHEREAS, the project site is also located with the Airport Influence Area of Chino Airport and must
be consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning
Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, which
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport activity;
and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such
notifications and procedures have been completed; and

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2021, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred.

Part Ill—THE DECISION

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1:  Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and

Page 4

Iltem B - 4 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File
Nos. PGPA18-003 and PSP18-001, a General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan for which an
Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2019049079) was adopted by the City Council on
February 2, 2021; and

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission;
and

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 2:  Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the
Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the
Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified
significant effects; and.

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could
not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified
EIR; or

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than
shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in
fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City
declined to adopt such measures; or

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in
the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which
the City declined to adopt.

Page 5

Item B - 5 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

SECTION 3:  Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

SECTION 4:  Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) Compliance. The California
State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans
and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and
adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence
Area for Ontario International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area,
as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport
activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and
information contained in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility
factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise
Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones
(ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore,
finds and determines that the Project, is consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with
policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by
the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics. As the recommending body for the
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation against the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook compatibility
factors. As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, is consistent with the policies
and criteria set forth within the Handbook, subject to conditions.

SECTION 5:  Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the facts and information set forth in Parts |
(Background and Analysis) and Il (Recitals), above, and the determinations set forth in Sections 1 through
4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed
Tentative Parcel Map is located within the Industrial (0.55 FAR) and Business Park (0.6 FAR) land use
districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan zoning district.
The proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute
to the establishment of “[a] dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and commercial
districts that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and businesses”
(Goal CD1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “take actions that are consistent with
the City being a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of our
existing viable neighborhoods” (Policy CD1-1 City Identity).

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Industrial and Business

Page 6

Item B - 6 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

Park land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Specific Plan (Merrill Commerce Center
Specific Plan) zoning district. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities
components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will provide “[a] high level of design quality resulting in
public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct (Goal CD2).
Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “collaborate with the development community to
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping and buildings to reduce
energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural daylight, passive solar and natural
ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural systems, building materials and construction
techniques” (Policy CD2-7 Sustainability).

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan zoning district
and is physically suitable for the type of industrial and business park development proposed in terms of
zoning, land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions.

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed.
The project site is proposed for industrial and business park development at floor area ratios of 0.55 FAR
and 0.6 FAR, respectively. The project site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Merrill
Commerce Center Specific Plan zoning district and is physically suitable for this intensity of development.

(%) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or
their habitat. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File
Nos. PGPA18-003 and PSP18-001, a General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan, respectively, for which
an Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2019049079) was adopted. The proposed
project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the
previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the Certified EIR, are
incorporated herein by this reference.

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the infrastructure
and landscape improvements proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health
problems, as the project is required to comply with Federal, State, and local regulations regarding use,
transportation, and storage of hazardous materials during either construction or project implementation, nor
are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject site
that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or
occupants to the project site.

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City.

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference.

Page 7

Item B - 7 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

SECTION 7:  Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding,
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

SECTION 8:  Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March 2021.

Development Advisory Board Chairman

Page 8

Item B - 8 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

Exhibit A— PROJECT LOCATION MAP

i

i

Page 9

Item B - 9 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

EXHIBIT B—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 20273

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 20273
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE LAND BORDERED BY CARPENTER AVENUE,
GROVE AVENUE, EUCALYPTUS AVENUE AND MERRILL AVENUE, [N THE
CITY OF ONTARIO, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

VICINITY MAP
o LU

pp—
T —— [re— — R — WO P R TR STImAY RO 4He Uiy
, e Gencmes (ST - — prbe s e JP— e || WOTIFICATIONS
s [ J| e | | et e | I | o an secronss R T ar
\ = s - =
Do ] SUCALYPTUS AVENUE— h?mmmiuua_¢ = JF l: 7 ] 1 - A8hen T e
-—= P = —= S —v— Py 3 -
- — _*_ = > — e e
—| Tt Lo - = LOTR- moTo r= g [ e ] [ A VN I ruacee e
) i .2 ] [ e) orP : ot | \oTh ; | L worm|  “oTL ark e AN -
H - ! el eE INT
o memomzn L PARCELZ0 1|l PARCEL® | FARCEL® | PARCELT PARCELE o || . PARCEL® . N PaRCELM h FARCEL B PARCEL 12 St
Pkt L) .| -
7 aenoN B o | ornmeerions | - 3 > | - " =
il it || s | e | e seraserions R swEwE 7 ; s e ar e
_ i | ! [ W AW
' il ' o T amamee,  (ji | g :
g S S | gt i e
Gl een HEH
|l T T T T T T 13 L'" ______ I e P I 'L' L Heplite
a HLL e . 35 B -
A [t B rwcms | il e 3
IR ara sesstinet | =HH LOTE1 BECTIH 31 LT 13 aRETOM 30 z| | L 11 sheTioH 31 L 14 et Lo 18 seemoN 20 | orsssecionss ! g AL
= [~y | ] i | R T8 et it o ety JRp———" i LER R }
B = =\ E .| [ o
g g | I o [l u I Ll u - S——
= w Y
15 i = ! = z ! = - s APPLICANT
£ | g [ ElI 1 g | =14 Zha ANt
. p i . oy
_L;. | H E L PacELs = | _g =z = ham
—_—— { g AT | —_——— — _ SR | S - i - ——— — ——— —_ == . - e
F g P TE E -+ £ R e
E = p 3 PARCEL®  F all L Taain g OWNERDEVELOPER
! }< Fe | I PARCEL 1 B -
! REETE -+ ! _— e PARCELD P & T E—
| — or s i a1 [am— 1 8 - i
. | : g2y secnou | oy stz ety | AR E ! S iy = g
T g2l
i | ) : > _I ! CIVIL ENGINEER
i J § S i o
1 P 1 1 -
paRCEL 4 . PirdeL e ' | g -
R hinke bt S U1 RS I ——— =B | P74\l ___ N lemt
| i | !
[N} 13 1 \ 1
i | »! | .
LT 3k secTIoN 21 - LoT a8 smerion 31 4 o o R b
P ‘ ‘ G Pttt oo L e s I,_J_“ wonhonen L
i I - i i I o
i o i . . e
AoTD | | i/ | : L= ST LoTdh el : =
y .l N - 20 .
V‘Nui_ = - _J.‘F —_—— =% == == ERRILL AVENUE. == AREA
= "
- - > Ly
I . o
airvar oo 4
st DL GraNT Zo0E H
! LEGEND [
' L gpue i
i !
¢ L e H
5 [
= b i B
[T pance. (PP :  EEn H
" T v ke B
© | o = :
m H
: 2 i |.
: G 3
m .
I H
x LEC T TE HALE LTI W4T !
- Mmoot LE@ TR - M
[E i
"
L ]
- CITY OF ONTARIO il
MERRILL COMMERCE CENTER "
- MASTER BLAN o 1
e TENTATIVE PARGEL MAP = |5
= e 20273 g Al
AL H

Page 10

Iltem B - 10 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

EXHIBIT C—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP SUMMARY TABLE

Parcel | Parcel Area (acres)
1 14.51
2 9.24
3 5.60
4 22.60
5 43.98
6 24.06
7 15.05
8 15.05
9 30.64
10 59.32
11 49.56
12 4.68
13 4.73
14 5.17
15 5.95
16 5.75
17 5.65
18 6.96
19 4.65
20 4.14
21 3.88
22 3.62

Total 344.79
Page 11

ltem B - 11 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision

File No. PMTT20-010

March 1, 2021

EXHIBIT D—CHINO AIRPORT SAFETY ZONES

S

¥ — Ontario City Limits

Project Site

Chino Airport Safety Zones

0.6
Miles

0.45

0.3

0.15

0.075

0
—

Page 12

ltem B - 12 of 50



Development Advisory Board Decision
File No. PMTT20-010
March 1, 2021

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page)

Page 13

ltem B - 13 of 50



City of Ontari H

P;aﬁﬁingnDir;I)c;rtment Plannlng Depa’:t’!,e_nt
303 East B Street Land Development Division
Ontario, California 91764 —

Phone: 909.395.2036 Conditions of Approval

Fax: 909.395.2420

Meeting Date: March 1, 2021
File No: PMTT20-010
Related Files: PDA18-004

Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20273) to subdivide 366.65 gross acres of land into
22 numbered lots and 22 lettered lots bordered by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north, Carpenter Avenue to
the east, Merrill Avenue to the south, and Grove Avenue to the west, within the SP/AG (Specific
Plan/Agricultural Overlay) zoning districts. The environmental impacts of this project were previously
reviewed in conjunction with PGPA18-003 and PSP18-001 regarding the Merrill Commerce Center Specific
Plan, for which an Environmental Impact Report (State Clearing House No. 2019049079) was certified by
the City Council on February 2, 2021. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts,
and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project
is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to
be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent
with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published
by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics; (APN(s): 1054-111-01; 1054-111-
02; 1054-121-01; 1054-121-02; 1054-131-01; 1054-131-02; 1054-141-01; 1054-141-02; 1054-151-01;
1054-151-02; 1054-161-01; 1054-161-02; 1054-161-03; 1054-171-01; 1054-171-02; 1054-171-03; 1054-
171-04; 1054-181-01; 1054-181-02; 1054-191-01; 1054-191-02; 1054-201-01; 1054-201-02; 1054-211-01,
1054-211-02; 1054-221-01; 1054-221-02; 1054-331-01; 1054-331-02; 1054-341-01; 1054-341-02; 1054-
351-01; 1054-351-02; 1054-361-01; 1054-361-02; 1073-111-01; 1073-111-02; 1073-111-03; 1073-111-04;
1073-111-05; 1073-111-06); submitted by Tom Donahue, Prologis.

Prepared By: Edmelynne V. Hutter, AICP, Senior Planner
Phone: 909.395.2429 (direct)
Email: ehutter@ontarioca.gov

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed
below:

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval.

1.1 The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions of Approval for New Development,
adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard Conditions of
Approval for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records
Management Department.

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions of Approval for New
Development identified in Condition No. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special
conditions of approval:

21 Specific Plan Approval. Tentative Parcel Map approval shall not be final and complete until
such time that the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan has been enacted by action of the City Council.

Iltem B - 14 of 50



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT20-010
Page 2 of 5

2.2 Time Limits. Tentative Parcel Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following
the effective date of application approval, unless the final parcel/tract map has been recorded, or a time
extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section
2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified
herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements.

2.3 Subdivision Map.

(a) The Final Parcel Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative Parcel
Map on file with the City. Variations from the approved Tentative Parcel Map may be reviewed and approved
by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Parcel Map may require
review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director.

(b) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums.

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense.

(d) Prior to approval and recordation of the Final Parcel Map, the applicant shall
submit to the City, a Street Naming request, pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Division
6.06 (Street Naming and Address Numbering).

24 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements:

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading,
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans
on file with the Planning Department.

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Department prior to building permit issuance.

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included
in the construction plan set for the project, which shall be maintained onsite during project construction.

2.5 Landscaping.

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping).

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape
Planning Division.

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction

Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been
approved by the Landscape Planning Division.

ltem B - 15 of 50



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT20-010
Page 3 of 5

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement
of the changes.

2.6 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).

2.7 Parking, Circulation and Access.

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting
drive aisle or parking space.

(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking.

(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained
in good condition for the duration of the building or use.

(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8).

(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure
facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11).

2.8 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance
Agreements.

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the
issuance of a building permit.

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The
articles of incorporation for the property owner’s association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and
approved by the City.

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common
maintenance of:
(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas;
(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02;

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and

(iv) Utility and drainage easements.

Iltem B - 16 of 50



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT20-010
Page 4 of 5

(d) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to
enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area.

(e) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R
provisions.

(f) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred.

29 Signage.
(a) Prior to approval and issuance of a sign permit, the Applicant shall submit for
review and approval a comprehensive sign program, pursuant to Development Code Sections 4.02.075

and 8.01.020.F.

210 Environmental Review.

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with the
Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No.
2019049079), certified by the Ontario City Council on February 2, 2021, in conjunction with File Nos.
PGPA18-003 (City Council Resolution No. 2021-012) and PSP18-001 (Ordinance No. 3178). This
Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation
measures are a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by this reference.

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures
implemented.

2.1 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario
shall cooperate fully in the defense.

212  Additional Fees.

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination filing
fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made payable to the
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors”, which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County Clerks of the
Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time specified
may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit.

ltem B - 17 of 50



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval
File No.: PMTT20-010
Page 5 of 5

(b) After the Project’'s entittement approval, and prior to issuance of final building
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established
by resolution of the City Council.

(c) The applicant shall provide payment for CC&R review at the rate established by
resolution of the City Council.

(d) The applicant shall provide payment for sign program review at the rate
established by resolution of the City Council.

2.13  Additional Requirements.

(a) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the quantity, size,
and location of mailboxes for this project.

(b) The Project shall comply with all Federal, State, and local regulations regarding
use, transportation, and storage of hazardous materials during construction and project implementation.

(c) Grading and development activities cannot occur on Assessors Parcels Number
1073-111-02, until the City Council adopts a resolution of final cancellation for Williamson Act Contract 69-
147 (File No. PWIL20-001) and record of Certificate of Cancellation has been executed.

(d) Grading and development activities cannot occur on Assessors Parcels Numbers
1054-151-02, 1054-161-03, 1054-201-02 and 1054-351-02, until the City Council adopts a resolution of
final cancellation for Williamson Act Contract 70-167 (File No. PWIL20-002) and record of Certificate of
Cancellation has been executed.

Iltem B - 18 of 50



CITY OF A
ONTARIO

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

(Engineering Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmental Section], Traffic & Transportation Division, Ontario
Municipal Utilities Company and Broadband Operations & Investment and Revenue Resources Department Conditions incorporated)

[ | DEVELOPMENT X] PARCEL MAP [ | TRACT MAP
PLAN
[ ] OTHER [ ] FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES

PROJECT FILE NO. PM-20273

RELATED FILE NO(S). PMTT20-010

[X ORIGINAL [] REVISED: / /

CITY PROJECT ENGINEER & PHONE NO: Jesus Plasencia, (909)395-2128

CITY PROJECT PLANNER & PHONE NO: Edmelynne Hutter, (909) 395-2429
DAB MEETING DATE: March 1, 2021

PROJECT NAME / DESCRIPTION: PM-20273, a Tentative Parcel Map to

subdivide approximately 366 acres
of land into 22 number lots and 17
letter lots within the Merrill
Commerce Center Specific Plan

LOCATION: Northwest corner of Merrill Avenue
and Carpenter Avenue
APPLICANT: Prologis, L.P.
e
REVIEWED BY: e ¥ e
L 2 224
Raymond Lee, P.E. T Date
Asiisx:ﬂ;bCity Engineer
APPROVED BY: —
C7—=N 222
Khoi Do, P.E. Date
City Engineer

Iltem B - 19 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE GENERAL STANDARD
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (RESOLUTION NO. 2017-027) AND THE
PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFIED IN HEREIN. ONLY APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL ARE CHECKED. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL
APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL PRIOR TO PARCEL MAP APPROVAL, ISSUANCE OF PERMITS
AND/OR OCCUPANCY CLEARANCE, AS SPECIFIED IN THIS REPORT.

PRIOR TO PARCEL MAP APPROVAL, APPLICANT SHALL: Check When

IZ 1.01 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the right-of-way in fee simple, described below: D

a. Merrill Avenue to the ultimate half width of right-of-way of 54 feet from centerline (CL)
north along project frontage

b. Grove Avenue to the ultimate half width of right-of-way of 62 feet from CL east along
project frontage .

c. Eucalyptus Avenue to the ultimate half width of right-of-way of 54 feet from CL south
along project frontage

d. Carpenter Avenue to the ultimate half width of right-of-way of 33 feet from CL west
along project frontage

e. Street “A” to the ultimate full width of right-of-way of 66 feet from Grove Avenue to
Walker Avenue

f. Walker Avenue to the ultimate full width of right-of-way of 88 feet along project frontage

g. Baker Avenue to the ultimate full width of right-of-way of 66 feet along project frontage

h. Vineyard Avenue to the ultimate full width of right-of-way of 148 feet along project
frontage

i. Lettered Lots D, F, G, |, J, K for Neighborhood Edge along Merrill Avenue (25 feet wide
measured from the ultimate northerly right-of-way)

j. Lettered Lots A through C for Neighborhood Edge along Grove Avenue (20 feet wide
measured from the ultimate easterly right-of-way)

k. Lettered Lots L through V for Neighborhood Edge along Eucalyptus Avenue (23 feet
wide measured from the ultimate northerly right-of-way)

. Lettered Lots E through H for Neighborhood Edge along Walker Avenue (18 feet wide
measured from the ultimate right-of-way on both sides)

m. Lettered Lots J and K for Neighborhood Edge along Vineyard Avenue (25 feet wide
measured from the ultimate right-of-way on both sides)

n. Corner cutoffs at all public street intersections throughout the project site

|:] 1.02 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the following easement(s): [:|
< 1.03 Restrict vehicular access to approved access points per the tentative Parcel Map and Merrill |:|

Commerce Center Specific Plan.

[X] 1.04 Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s): ]
1. All easements interfering with required improvements shall be quitclaimed or vacated.
This includes, but is not limited to, the existing easement along Merrill Avenue for
operating and maintaining a pumping plant, irrigation lines, and incidental purposes.
Otherwise, non-interference letters from the affected ownerfutility company shall be
provided. See COA 1.14.3.

] 1.05 Submit a copy of a recorded private reciprocal use agreement or easement. The agreement or |:|
easement shall ensure, at a minimum, common ingress and egress and joint maintenance of all
common access areas and drive aisles.

<] 1.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) as applicable to |:|
the project and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning
Departments, ready for recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&Rs shall
provide for, but not be limited to, common ingress and egress, joint maintenance responsibility
for all common access improvements, common facilities, parking areas, utilities, median and

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 2 0f 20

Iltem B - 20 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 AR
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia / :
Date: 2/24/21

landscaping improvements and drive approaches, in addition to maintenance requirements
established in the Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project. The
CC&Rs shall also address the maintenance and repair responsibility for public
improvements/utilities (sewer, water, storm drain, recycled water, etc.) located within open
spaceleasements. In the event of any maintenance or repair of these facilities, the City shall
only restore disturbed areas to current City Standards.

|Z 1.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the |:|

specified boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at htip:/tceplumecleanup.comy/), the
property developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume
“Disclosure Letter”. Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate
Transfer Disclosure requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may
include notifications in the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other
documents related to property transfer and disclosures. Additional information on the plume is
available from the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board at
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

|:| 1.08 File an application for Reapportionment of Assessment, together with payment of a reapportionment D

processing fee, for each existing assessment district listed below. Contact the Financial Services
Department at (909) 395-2124 regarding this requirement.

M
@

1.09 Prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City approved format and forms) with [:]
accompanying security as required, or complete all public improvements.

X

110 Provide a monument bond (i.e. cash deposit) in an amount calculated by the City’s approved D
cost estimate spreadsheet (available for download on the City’s website: www.ci.ontario.ca.us)
or as specified in writing by the applicant’s Registered Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor of
Record and approved by the City Engineer, whichever is greater.

X

Provide a preliminary title report current to within 30 days. [:|

-
-
-

File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community |:|
Facilities District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982.

The application and fee shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) months prior to final
subdivision map approval, and the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map
approval or issuance of building permits, whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established
upon the subject property to provide funding for various City services. An annual special tax
shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be determined. The special tax will be
collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the sole lead agency in the
formation of any CFD. Contact Investment and Revenue Resources at (909) 395-2341 to initiate

the CFD application process.

X
R~

Iz 1.13 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: D
1) Provide evidence of final cancellation of Williamson Act contracts associated with this
tract, prior to approval of any final subdivision map. Cancellation of contracts shall have been
approved by the City Council.

[ 2) Provide evidence of sufficient storm water capacity availability equivalents (Certificate of Storm
Water Treatment Equivalents).

[] 3) Provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents (Certificate of Net MDD Availability).
] 1.14 Other conditions: ]
1. Provide private easements for utilities, cross lot drainage, blanket emergency access

and reciprocal access across applicable parcels as needed.

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 3 of 20

Iltem B - 21 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

2. The Parcel Map shall comply with the approved Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan,
the Development Agreement and these Tentative Parcel Map Conditions of Approval.

3. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain all off-site right-of-way/easements necessary to

construct the required public improvements identified within Section 2 of these
Conditions of Approval.

2. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMITS, APPLICANT SHALL:

A. GENERAL
( Permits includes Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment )

] 2.01 Record Parcel Map No. 20273 pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act and in accordance with the
City of Ontario Municipal Code.

<] 2.02 Submita PDF of the recorded map to the City Engineer’s office. E]

<] 2.03 Please note that the subject parcels will be recognized parcels in the City of Ontario upon |:|
recordation of the Parcel Map.

|:| 2.04 Note that the subject parcel is an ‘unrecognized’ parcel in the City of Ontario and shall require a |:|
Certificate of Compliance to be processed unless a deed is provided confirming the existence of the
parcel prior to the date of

[[] 2.05 Applyfora: [] Certificate of Compliance with a Record of Survey; [1 Lot Line Adjustment []

[[] Make a Dedication of Easement.

|Z 2.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R’s), as applicable to |:|
the project, and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning
Departments, ready for recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&R’s shall
provide for, but not be limited to, common ingress and egress, joint maintenance of all common
access improvements, common facilities, parking areas, utilities and drive approaches in
addition to maintenance requirements established in the Water Quality Management Plan (
WQMP), as applicable to the project.

|Z| 2.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the |:|

specified boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at htip:/iceplumecleanup.com/), the
property developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume
“Disclosure Letter”. Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate
Transfer Disclosure requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq. This may
include notifications in the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other
documents related to property transfer and disclosures. Additional information on the plume is
available from the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board at
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658.

] 2.08 Submita soils/geology report.

O O

g 2.09 Other Agency Permit/Approval: Submit a copy of the approved permit and/or other form of
approval of the project from the following agency or agencies:

State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) — Euclid Avenue
Improvements

|:| San Bernardino County Road Department (SBCRD)

|:| San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFCD)

|:| Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

|:| Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for sewer/water service
D United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 4 of 20

Iltem B - 22 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 SIAR7,
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia y -
Date: 2/24/21

D California Department of Fish & Game
Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) — Kimball Avenue sewer connection

Other:

s City of Chino — For any improvements encroaching into their jurisdiction including
but not limited to the required Merrill Avenue improvements

e San Bernardino County Department of Airports/FAA — Construction of overhead
structures and appurtenances such as traffic signals and street lights at or near the
intersection of Merrill Avenue and Grove Avenue

[[] 210 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the right-of-way described below: ]

feet on

Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of

and
D 2.11  Dedicate to the City of Ontario the following easement(s): D
X 212 New Model Colony (NMC) Developments: |:|

X 1) Submit a copy of the permit from the San Bernardino County Health Department to the
Engineering Department and the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) for the
destruction/abandonment of the on-site water well. The well shall be destroyed/abandoned in
accordance with the San Bernardino County Health Department guidelines.

X 2) Make a formal request to the City of Ontario Engineering Department for the proposed
temporary use of an existing agricultural water well for purposes other than agriculture, such as
grading, dust control, etc. Upon approval, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the
City of Ontario and pay any applicable fees as set forth by said agreement.

X1 3) Design proposed retaining walls to retain up to a maximum of three (3) feet of earth. In no
case shall a wall exceed an overall height of nine (9) feet (i.e. maximum 6-foot high wall on top
of a maximum 3-foot high retaining wall.

|:| 213  Submit a security deposit to the Engineering Department to guarantee construction of the public |:|
improvements required herein valued at % of the approved construction cost estimate. Security deposit
shall be in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal Code. Security deposit will be eligible for
release, in accordance with City procedure, upon completion and acceptance of said public
improvements.

24 214 The applicant/developer shall submit all necessary survey documents prepared by a Licensed |:|
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all existing survey monuments in and

around the project site. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey
Office.

& 215 Pay all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. Storm Drain Development [:|
Impact Fee, approximately $10,915,766, shall be paid to the Building Department. Final fee shall
be determined based on the approved site plan.

D 2.16  Other conditions:

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 5 of 20

Iltem B - 23 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

B. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
(See attached Exhibit ‘A’ for plan check submittal requirements.)

X' 217 Design and construct full public improvements in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal
Code, current City standards and specifications, master plans and the adopted specific plan for
the area. All master-planned utilities shall be designed and installed to the uitimate condition.
These public improvements shall include, but not be limited to, those summarized in Exhibit ‘B’
{checked boxes).

[[] 218 Construct a 2" asphalt concrete (AC) grind and overlay on the following street(s): ]

|Z| 2.19 Reconstruction of the full pavement structural section, per City of Ontario Standard Drawing |:|
number 1011, may be required based on the existing pavement condition and final street design
on Merrill Avenue, Eucalyptus Avenue, Grove Avenue, and Carpenter Avenue. Minimum limits
of reconstruction shall be along property frontage, from street centerline to curb/gutter.

]:] 220 Make arrangements with the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to provide [ water service |:|
[] sewer service to the site. This property is within the area served by the CVWD and Applicant shall
provide documentation to the City verifying that all required CVWD fees have been paid.

] 2.21 Overhead utilities shall be under-grounded, in accordance with Title 7 of the City’s Municipal [:]
Code (Ordinance No. 2804 and 2892).

] 2.22 This project shall follow the Merrill Commerce Center Utilities System Map, dated 01/14/2021, |:]
and any deviation from this plan shall require the Utility Plan to be updated and resubmitted to
OMUC for review and approval. A Final USM shall be submitted with all public improvement

plan submittals. See Utility Systems Map (USM) Requirements document for details.

C. SEWER
[] 223 A inch sewer main is available for connection by this project in ]

(Ref: Sewer plan bar code: )

<] 2.24 Design and construct sewer main extensions. A sewer main is not available for direct [:|
connection. The closest mains are located at the intersections of Merrill Avenue/Carpenter
Avenue and Kimball Avenue/Euclid Avenue.

[[] 225 Submit documentation that shows expected peak loading values for modeling the impact of the subject |:|
project to the existing sewer system. The project site is within a deficient public sewer system area.
Applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with the preparation of the model. Based on the
results of the analysis, Applicant may be required to mitigate the project impact to the deficient public
sewer system, including, but not limited fo, upgrading of existing sewer main(s), construction of new
sewer main(s) or diversion of sewer discharge to another sewer.

] 2.26 Other conditions: ]

1. The Sanitary Sewer Technical Study in currently in process and has not been finalized. The
project shall complete the study during final design and prior to issuance of any building
permit.

2. The following sewer system improvements shall be installed per Master Plan and Specific
Plan Requirements. Final sewer main sizes and alignments are subject to the findings of the
Technical Study:

A. 21-inch to 30-inch main in Walker Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill

Avenue
B. 24-inch to 30-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Walker Avenue and Grove Avenue

C. 30-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Grove Avenue and Euclid Avenue

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 6 of 20

Iltem B - 24 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 SRIARy,
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia {3 \
Date: 2/24/21 ' .

36-inch main in Euclid Avenue between Merrill Avenue and Kimball Avenue with a
connection to the existing 60-inch IEUA Kimball Interceptor Trunk Sewer main at Kimball
Avenue

18-inch main in Grove Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

8-inch main in Baker Avenue from south of Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

. 12-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue from west of Walker Avenue to Grove Avenue
12-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue from west of Vineyard Avenue to west of Walker
Avenue

15-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue between Carpenter Avenue and Vineyard Avenue
with a connection to the existing Carpenter Trunk Sewer main

12-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Baker Avenue and Walker Avenue

8-inch main in Merrill Avenue from west of Vineyard Avenue to Baker Avenue

10-inch main in Merrill Avenue from east of Vineyard Avenue to Carpenter Avenue with a
connection to the existing Carpenter Trunk Sewer main

o

- Temm

rx&

3. The applicant/developer shall submit a written request letter to the City for a new Regional
Sewer Connection. The request letter shall include: an exhibit that shows the tributary area
of the Regional Connection; the proposed sewer system main connection through the
proposed Regional Connection; IEUA record drawing number, station humber and manhole
number or the connection point; and a plan and profile detail of the manhole connection and
any modification proposed to the manhole. Once received from the applicant, the City will
request the new Regional Connection from IEUA. If approved by IEUA, the applicant shall
be responsible for meeting all terms, conditions, standards, and requirements IEUA has for
the Regional Connection.

4. Each Occupant of the building, or units, shall apply for a Wastewater Discharge Permit for
their Establishment, and shall comply with all the requirements of their Wastewater
Discharge Permit. Requirements of Wastewater Discharge Permit may include, but not
limited to including possibly installing a monitoring manhole, clarifier, or other sewer
pretreatment equipment.

D. WATER

|:| 227 A inch water main is available for connection by this project in E]
(Ref: Water plan bar code: )

g 2.28 Design and construct a water main extension. A water main is not available for direct ]
connection. The closest main is located along Carpenter Avenue.

X 2.29 Other conditions: ]

1. The following potable water system improvements shall be installed per Master Plan and
Specific Plan Requirements:

A. 24-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue between Carpenter Avenue and Grove Avenue with a

connection to the existing 24-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue

12-inch main in Grove Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

16-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Grove Avenue and Vineyard Avenue

12-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Vineyard Avenue and Carpenter Avenue with a

connection to the existing 12-inch main in Merrilli Avenue

16-inch main in Walker Avenue between Merrill Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue

12-inch main in Baker Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

. 16-inch main in Vineyard Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

12-inch main in Street “A” between Grove Avenue and Walker Avenue

30-inch to 42-inch main in Grove Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Chino Avenue

subject to the terms in the Development Agreement

18-inch main in Chino Avenue between Grove Avenue and the Cucamonga Creek subject

to the terms in the Development Agreement

K. Channel with a connection to the existing 18-inch main just west of the Cucamonga
Creek Channel subject to the terms in the Development Agreement

~IemMmM pom

<

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 7 of 20

Iltem B - 25 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

L. install an Interim 1010 PZ to 925 PZ Pressure Reducing Station at the intersection of
Grove Avenue and Chino Avenue

2. The following potable water mains/facilities (final alignments subject to change) are
required by the Project, but the Project shall contribute towards the construction as
described within the Development Agreement:

42-inch main in Grove Avenue between Chino Avenue and Francis Avenue

42-inch main in Francis Avenue between Grove Avenue and Bon View Avenue

42-inch main in Bon View Avenue between Francis Avenue and Bon View Reservoir Site
9-million gallon reservoir on the Bon View Reservoir Site, two 2,500 GPM groundwater
production wells with any treatment necessary to meet water quality standards, and the
16-inch and 24-inch collection mains from the wells to the reservoirs

oCowm»

E. RECYCLED WATER

230 A inch recycled water main is available for connection by this project in . D
(Ref: Recycled Water plan bar code: )

2.31 Design and construct an on-site recycled water system for this project. A recycled water main |:|
does exist in the vicinity of this project.

2.32 Design and construct an on-site recycled water ready system for this project. A recycled water main []
does not currently exist in the vicinity of this project, but is planned for the near future. If Applicant
would like to connect to this recycled water main when it becomes available, the cost for the connection
shall be borne solely by the Applicant.

Ll

[ X

] 2.33 Submit two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy, in PDF format, of the Engineering |:|
Report (ER), for the use of recycled water, to the OMUC for review and subsequent submittal to
the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) for final approval.

Note: The OMUC and the CDPH review and approval process will be approximately three (3)
months. Contact the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company at (909) 395-2647 regarding this
requirement.

[X] 234 Otherconditions: ]

1. This development shall comply with City Ordinance 2689 and make use of recycled water for
all approved uses, including but not limited to landscaping irrigation for CFD and/or HOA
maintained areas and parks. Appropriately sized public and private mains shall be installed
throughout the Project to meet this requirement, as approved by the City.

2. The following recycled water system improvements shall be installed per Master Plan and
Specific Plan Requirements:

A. 16-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue between Carpenter Avenue and Vineyard Avenue
with a connection to the existing 16-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue

12-inch main in Eucalyptus Avenue between Vineyard Avenue and Grove Avenue

8-inch main in Grove Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

8-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Grove Avenue and Walker Avenue

16-inch main in Merrill Avenue between Walker Avenue and Carpenter Avenue with a
connection to the existing 16-inch main in Merrill Avenue

16-inch main in Carpenter Avenue between Merrill Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue

. 8-inch main in Vineyard Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

. 8-inch main in Walker Avenue between Eucalyptus Avenue and Merrill Avenue

8-inch main in Street “A” between Grove Avenue and Walker Avenue

moow

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 8 of 20

Iltem B - 26 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 cﬂﬂk:o

Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia [:
Date: 2/24/21 -

G

F. TRAFFIC / TRANSPORTATION

D 2.35 Submit a focused traffic impact study, prepared and signed by a Traffic/Civil Engineer registered in the |:|
State of California. The study shall address, but not be limited to, the following issues as required by
the City Engineer:
1. On-site and off-site circulation
2. Traffic level of service (LOS) at ‘build-out’ and future years
3. Impact at specific intersections as selected by the City Engineer

[X] 2.368 New traffic signal installations shall be added to Southern California Edison (SCE) customer |:|
account number # 2-20-044-3877.

[X] 2.37 Other conditions: ]

1. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to perform all mitigation measures and
operational improvements in accordance with the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan
TIA by Urban Crossroads dated June 30, 2020, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

2. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct street improvements
along Grove Avenue, Street “A”, Walker Avenue, Baker Avenue, Vineyard Avenue,
Carpenter Avenue, Eucalyptus Avenue, and Merrill Avenue as specified in these Conditions
of Approval. These, and all other street improvements required herein, shall include, but
not be limited to, concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, LED street lights, signing and striping,
and parkway landscaping.

3. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct the necessary
pavement and striping transitions from existing roadway conditions to the widened roadway
portions along all project frontages. Striping improvements shall include the removal
existing interim signing and striping beyond the project frontage limits and the installation
of ultimate signing and striping.

4, Unless constructed by others, the Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and
construct the foliowing streets to their ultimate half-width including additional pavement for
circulation lanes and graded shoulder (where applicable) beyond the centerline of the

roadway:

a. Merrill Avenue from Carpenter Avenue to Euclid Avenue

b. Grove Avenue from Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

¢. Eucalyptus Avenue from Grove Avenue to Carpenter Avenue
d. Carpenter Avenue from Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

Additional R/W shall be provided to accommodate additional left turn and right turn lanes at
intersections based on required queue lengths per the Merrill Commerce Center Specific
Plan TIA by Urban Crossroads. Improvements shall include, but not be limited to concrete
curb and gutter, sidewalk, LED street lights, landscaped parkways, signing & striping, and
necessary pavement transitions.

5. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct the following streets
to their ultimate full-width:

Street “A” from Grove Avenue to Walker Avenue

Walker Avenue from Ontario Ranch Road to Merrill Avenue
Baker Avenue from Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue
Vineyard Avenue from Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

aoop

6. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct modifications to the
existing traffic signal on Euclid Avenue at Merrill Avenue per the mitigation measures and
operational improvements listed in the Merrill Commerce Center Specific Plan TIA by Urban
Crossroads. The traffic signal modification shall address relocation of any equipment
including video detection, CCTV, interconnect cable and conduit, emergency vehicle
preemption systems, and bicycle detection to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. All new

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 9 of 20

Iltem B - 27 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

signal equipment shall be installed at its ultimate location, unless precluded by right-of-way
limitations.

7. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct modifications to the
existing traffic signal on Merrill Avenue at Carpenter Avenue. The traffic signal modification
shall address relocation of any equipment including video detection, CCTV, interconnect
cable and conduit, emergency vehicle preemption systems, and bicycle detection to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer. All new signal equipment shall be installed at its ultimate
location, unless precluded by right-of-way limitations.

8. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct traffic signals at the
following intersections:

Merrill Avenue at Vineyard Avenue

Merrill Avenue at Baker Avenue

Merrill Avenue at Walker Avenue

Merrill Avenue at Planning Area (P.A.) 2 Signalized Entrance
Merrill Avenue at Grove Avenue

Grove Avenue at Street “A”

Grove Avenue at Eucalyptus Avenue

Street “A” at P.A.1/2 Signalized Entrance

Walker Avenue at Street “A”

Baker Avenue at P.A. 4/5 Signalized Entrance
Vineyard Avenue at P.A. 5/6 Signalized Entrance
Carpenter Avenue at P.A. 6 Signalized Entrance
Eucalyptus Avenue at P.A. 1A Signalized Entrance
Eucalyptus Avenue at Walker Avenue

Eucalyptus Avenue at Baker Avenue

Eucalyptus Avenue at Vineyard Avenue
Eucalyptus Avenue at Carpenter Avenue

ABOBI-FTTSQ@NOQODY

The new traffic signals shall include video detection, interconnect cable and conduit,
emergency vehicle preemption systems and bicycle detection to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. All new signal equipment shall be installed at its ultimate location, unless
precluded by right-of-way limitations.

9. Merrill Avenue is designated truck route in the City of Ontario. Unless constructed by
others, the Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct concrete
pavement at the following intersections in accordance with City of Ontario Standard
Drawing No. 1207:

Merrill Avenue at Carpenter Avenue

Merrill Avenue at Vineyard Avenue

Merrill Avenue at Baker Avenue

Merrill Avenue at Walker Avenue

Merrill Avenue at P.A. 2 Signalized Entrance
Merrill Avenue at Grove Avenue

"o ooTw

10. Proposed driveways onto Grove Avenue and Vineyard Avenue shall be restricted to right-
infright-out access only unless the driveway located at a signalized intersection. On-site
signage and pavement markings shall be provided for driveway access restrictions. Median
breaks along Grove Avenue and Vineyard Avenue shall only be allowed at signalized
intersections.

11. Driveways shall be constructed in accordance with City of Ontario Standard Drawing No.
1204. Provide truck turning templates for the site-specific design vehicles. The vehicle
shall be capable of making the inbound and outbound maneuvers such that it does not
impact more than one lane of traffic.

12. Driveways spacing shall be designed in accordance with Traffic and Transportation
Guidelines Access Guidelines.

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 10 of 20

Iltem B - 28 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

13. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct in-fill public street
lights along its project frontages. Street lighting shall be LED-type and in accordance with
the City’s Traffic and Transportation Guidelines.

14. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct a bus turnouts to
serve future stops on the east side of Grove Avenue, north of Merrill Avenue (along Parcel
3) and north of Street “A” (along Parcel 1). The bus turnouts shall be designed in
accordance with Omnitrans requirements and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

15. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct a bus turnouts to
serve future stops on the east side and west side of Vineyard Avenue, north of Merrill
Avenue (along Parcel 11), south of Eucalyptus Avenue (along Parcel 14), and north of and
south of the signalized entrance (departure side) to P.A. 5/6 ( along Parcel 10 & 11) . The
bus turnouts shall be designed in accordance with Omnitrans requirements and to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

16. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct a bus pads to serve
future stops on the south side of Eucalyptus Avenue, east of Grove Avenue, the signalized
entrance to P.A. 1A, Walker Avenue, Baker Avenue, and Vineyard Avenue. The bus pads
shall be designed in accordance with Omnitrans requirements and to the satisfaction of the
City Engineer.

17. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to design and construct a bus pads to serve
future stops on the north side of Merrill Avenue, west of Carpenter Avenue, Vineyard
Avenue, Baker Avenue, Walker Avenue and the signalized entrance to P.A. 2. The bus pads
shall be designed in accordance with Omnitrans requirements and to the satisfaction of the
City Engineer.

18. The Applicant/Developer’s engineer-of-record shall meet with City Engineering staff prior to
start of signing and striping, traffic signal, and street lighting design, and develop an interim
striping plan that includes any necessary pavement transitions in preparation for the plan
check stage.

19. The Applicant/Developer shall submit documentation of coordination of Merrill Avenue and
Euclid Avenue improvements with the City of Chino and Caltrans.

G. DRAINAGE / HYDROLOGY

|_—_] 238 A inch storm drain main is available to accept flows from this project in . |:]
(Ref: Storm Drain plan bar code: )

@ 2.39 Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer |:]
registered in the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San
Bernardino County Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines. Additional
drainage facilities, including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project frontage, may
be required to be designed and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the findings of this
study.

| 2.40 An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not currently exist ]
downstream of the project along Grove Avenue. Design and construct a storm water detention
facilities on the project site. Detention is required throughout the site until such time as
downstream facilities are constructed and accepted by applicable government agencies such as

San Bernardino County Flood Control District and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. The 100-year
post-development peak flow shall be attenuated such that it does not exceed 80% of pre-
development peak flows, in accordance with the approved hydrology study and improvement
plans.

D 2.41  Submit a copy of a recorded private drainage easement or drainage acceptance agreement to the [:|
Engineering Department for the acceptance of any increase to volume and/or concentration of historical
drainage flows onto adjacent property, prior to approval of the grading plan for the project.

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 11 of 20

Iltem B - 29 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 SUIARy
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia \:
Date: 2/24/21

[X] 242 Comply with the City of Ontario Fiood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2409). The []
project site or a portion of the project site is within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) as
indicated on the Flood insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and is subject to flooding during a 100-year
frequency storm. The site plan shall be subject to the provisions of the National Flood
Insurance Program.

[XI 243 Otherconditions: |:]

1. Design and construct the following storm drain improvements in accordance with the
Development Agreement:

24” RCP on Eucalyptus Avenue from west of Walker Avenue to Grove Avenue

24” RCP on Eucalyptus Avenue from east of Grove Avenue to Walker Avenue

13’x 8’ RCB on Eucalyptus Avenue from Walker Avenue to Vineyard Avenue

13’x 8’ RCB on Vineyard Avenue from Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

120” RCP on Grove Avenue from Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

24” RCP on Walker Avenue from Street “A” to Merrill Avenue

24” RCP on Baker Avenue from south of Eucalyptus Avenue to Merrill Avenue

6’x3’ RCB on Merrill Avenue from east of Grove Avenue to Walker Avenue

Double 8'x4’ RCB on Merrill Avenue from Walker Avenue to Baker Avenue

Double 8’x9’ RCB on Merrill Avenue from Baker Avenue to Vineyard Avenue

Double 12’x10° RCB on Merrill Avenue from Vineyard Avenue to the point of
connection west of Carpenter Avenue on Merrill Avenue

Local storm drain improvements on Street ”A” and Carpenter Avenue.

. Unless constructed by others, construct storm drain improvements on Grove
Avenue south of Merrill Avenue to the satisfaction of the City of Chino and City of
Ontario.

AETIOMMOO D>

=r

2. Public storm drain improvements shall accommodate for tributary flows in accordance
with the City’s Master Plan of Drainage.

3. Design and construct all on-site storm drain improvements, which shall be privately
owned and maintained.

H. STORM WATER QUALITY / NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE AND ELIMINATION SYSTEM
(NPDES)

D 2.44 401 Water Quality Certification/404 Permit — Submit a copy of any applicable 401 Certification or 404 D
Permit for the subject project to the City project engineer. Development that will affect any body of
surface water (i.e. lake, creek, open drainage channel, etc.) may require a 401 Water Quality
Certification from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (RWQCB)
and a 404 Permit from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The groups of water
bodies classified in these requirements are perennial (flow year round) and ephemeral (flow during rain
conditions, only) and include, but are not limited to, direct connections into San Bernardino County
Flood Control District (SBCFCD) channels.

If a 401 Certification and/or a 404 Permit are not required, a letter confirming this from Applicant’s
engineer shall be submitted.
Contact information: USACE (Los Angeles District) (213) 452-3414; RWQCB (951) 782-4130.

<] 2.45 Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted,
utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at:
http://lwww.sbcounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.

|:] 2.46 Design and construct a Connector Pipe Trash Screen or equivalent Trash Treatment Control Device,
per catch basin located within or accepting flows tributary of a Priority Land Use (PLU) area that meets
the Full Capture System definition and specifications, and is on the Certified List of the State Water
Resources Control Board. The device shall be adequately sized per catch basin and include a deflector

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 12 0of 20

Iltem B - 30 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

screen with vector control access for abatement application, vertical support bars, and removable
component to facilitate maintenance and cleaning.

] 2.47 Other conditions: []

1. Design and construct nutrient separating baffle boxes (NSBB) or hydrodynamic
separators or equivalent alternative approved devices to satisfy the statewide trash
mandate on Grove Avenue north of the Merrill Avenue intersection and on Merrill
Avenue west of the Carpenter Avenue intersection.

2. Obtain coverage under the Construction General Permit (CGP). The owner is the legally
responsible person (LRP) of the site and shall have a Stormwater Poliution Prevention
Plan (SWPPP) developed and submitted through the SMARTS website at
https:/smarts.waterboards.ca.gov/smarts/faces/SwSmartsLogin.xhtml

J. SPECIAL DISTRICTS

[X] 248 File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community ]

Facilities District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982.
The application and fee shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) months prior to final
subdivision map approval, and the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map
approval or issuance of building permits, whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established
upon the subject property to provide funding for various City services. An annual special tax
shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be determined. The special tax will be
collected along with annual property taxes. The City shall be the sole lead agency in the
formation of any CFD. Contact Investment and Revenue Resources at (909) 395-2341 to initiate
the CFD application process.

[[] 249 Otherconditions: ]

K. FIBER OPTIC

[X] 250 Design and construct fiber optic system to provide access to the City’s conduit and fiber optic [:|
system per the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan. Building entrance conduits shall start from the
closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along the project frontage in the ROW and shall
terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building. Conduit infrastructure shall
interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic conduit system at the
nearest OntarioNet hand hole. Limits of work are generally located along project frontages of
Merrill Avenue, Grove Avenue, Eucalyptus Avenue, Carpenter Avenue, Street “A”, Walker
Avenue, Baker Avenue, and Vineyard Avenue.

<] 2.51 Refer to the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout guidelines. Contact the [ |
Broadband Operations Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement.

L. Integrated Waste

<] 2.52 Onsite solid waste shall be designed in accordance with the City’s Solid Waste Manual location D
at:https://www.ontarioca.qov/sites/default/files/Ontario-Files/Municipal-Utilities-
Company/planning manual-2016 update 0.pdf

[X] 253 Other conditions: ]

1. The Conceptual Solid Waste Handling Plan for the entire map boundary dated 12/21/20,
shall be updated to meet all conditions and requirements for a SWHP for review and
approval with the development plan application for each parcel. See Solid Waste Handling
Plan (SWHP) Requirements document for details.

2. This site shall comply with the Requirements of State Assembly Bill AB1826, which
requires organic waste to be diverted and collected separately from recycling and other
refuse wastes.

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 13 of 20

Iltem B - 31 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia
Date: 2/24/21

3. At minimum this site requires a trash enclosure sized to store three 4-cubic-yard bins (one
for refuse, one for recycling, and one for organics) for each potential office area of each
building.

4. The applicant shall submit a Conceptual Integrated Waste Management Report for review
and approval with the development plan application for each parcel. This report shall
address the management of all integrated waste (Refuse, Recycling, Organics, etc.). The
IWMR shall demonstrate compliance with the “Integrated Waste Management Report
Requirements” document

3. PRIORTOISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, APPLICANT SHALL:

<] 3.01 Set new monuments in place of any monuments that have been damaged or destroyed as a []
result of construction of the subject project. Monuments shall be set in accordance with City
of Ontario standards and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

<] 3.02 Complete all requirements for recycled water usage. [:[

1) Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confirmation from the California
Department of Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Report (ER) has been reviewed and
the subject site is approved for the use of recycled water.

X1 2) Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water
improvements and passing of shutdown tests and cross connection inspection, upon
availability/usage of recycled water.

[X 3) Complete education training of on-site personnel in the use of recycled water, in
accordance with the ER, upon availability/usage of recycled water.

] 3.03 The applicant/developer shall submit all final survey documents prepared by a Licensed |:|
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all survey monuments that have been
preserved, revised, adjusted or set along with any maps, corner records or Records of Survey
needed to comply with these Conditions of Approvals and the latest edition of the California
Professional Land Survey Act. These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City
Survey Office.

|Z 3.04 NMC Projects: For developments located at an intersection of any two collector or arterial D
streets, the applicant/developer shall set a monument if one does not already exist at that
intersection. Contact the City Survey office for information on reference benchmarks,
acceptable methodology and required submittals.

| 3.05 Confirm payment of ail Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. |:|
X 3.06 Submit electronic copies (PDF and Auto CAD format) of all approved improvement plans, |:|

studies and reports (i.e. hydrology, traffic, WQMP, etc.).

3.07 Other Conditions: |:|

X

1. Successfully pass water system start-up and cross-connection tests.

2. Provide evidence demonstrating training of the on-site supervisor or designee as
specified in the Recycled Water Engineering Report.

PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE, APPLICANT SHALL:

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 14 of 20

Iltem B - 32 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 c"“"’w’c

Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia 2
Date: 2/24/21 ! .

e

] 4.01 Complete all Conditions of Approval listed under Sections 1-3 above. |:|
] 4.02 Pay all outstanding fees pursuant to the City of Ontario Municipal Code, including but not [:|

limited to, plan check fees, inspection fees and Development Impact Fees.

4

4.03 The applicant/developer shall submit a written request for the City’s final acceptance of the [:|
project addressed to the City Project Engineer. The request shall state that all Conditions of
Approval have been completed and shall be signed by the applicant/developer. Upon receipt
of the request, review of the request shall be a minimum of 10 business days. Conditions of
Approval that are deemed incomplete by the City will cause delays in the acceptance process.

| 4.04 Submit record drawings (PDF) for all public improvements identified within Section 2 of these [ ]
Conditions of Approval.

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 15 of 20

Iltem B - 33 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 cﬁq-\“.i\n;c
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia i 1
Date: 2/24/21

EXHIBIT ‘A’

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
First Plan Check Submittal Checklist

Parcel Map No. 20273

The following items are required to be included with the first plan check submittatl:

1. A copy of this check list

2. [X Payment of fee for Plan Checking

3. One (1) copy of Engineering Cost Estimate (on City form) with engineer’s wet signature and stamp.

4. [XI One (1) copy of project Conditions of Approval

5. Include a PDF (electronic submittal) of each required improvement plan at every submittal.

6. [ Two (2) sets of Potable and Recycled Water demand calculations (include water demand calculations
showing low, average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water
meter size).

7. X Three (3) sets of Public Street improvement plan with street cross-sections

8. [ Three (3) sets of Private Street improvement plan with street cross-sections

9. Four (4) sets of Public Water improvement plan (include water demand calculations showing low,
average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size)

10. Four (4) sets of Recycled Water improvement plan (include recycled water demand calculations
showing low, average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed
water meter size and an exhibit showing the limits of areas being irrigated by each recycled water
meter)

1. Four (4) sets of Public Sewer improvement plan

12. [X Five (5) sets of Public Storm Drain improvement plan

13. [X] Three (3) sets of Public Street Light improvement plan

14. X Three (3) sets of Signing and Striping improvement plan

15. [XI Three (3) sets of Fiber Optic plan (include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

16. X Three (3) sets of Dry Utility plans (e.g. SCE) within public right-of-way (at a minimum the plans must
show existing and ultimate right-of-way, curb and gutter, proposed utility location including centerline
dimensions, wall to wall clearances between proposed utility and adjacent public line, street work
repaired per Standard Drawing No. 1306. Include Auto CAD electronic submittal)

17. [X Three (3) sets of Traffic Signal improvement plan and One (1) copy of Traffic Signal Specifications
with modified Special Provisions. Please contact the Traffic Division at (909) 395-2154 to obtain Traffic
Signal Specifications.

18. X Two (2) copies of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), including one (1) copy of the approved
Preliminary WQMP (PWQMP).

19. One (1) copy of Hydrology/Drainage study
20. X One (1) copy of Soils/Geology report

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 16 0f 20

Iltem B - 34 of 50



Project File No. PM-20273 SIAR,
Project Engineer: Jesus Plasencia f
Date: 2/24/21

21, Payment for Final Map/Parcel Map processing fee

22. [XI Three (3) copies of Final Map/Parcel Map

23, One (1) copy of approved Tentative Map

24, One (1) copy of Preliminary Title Report (current within 30 days)

25. One (1) copy of Traverse Closure Calculations

26. X1 One (1) set of supporting documents and maps (legible copies): referenced improvement plans (full
size), referenced record final maps/parcel maps (full size, 18”x26”), Assessor’s Parcel map (full size,

11”x17”), recorded documents such as deeds, lot line adjustments, easements, etc.

27. X Two (2) copies of Engineering Report and an electronic file (include PDF format electronic
submittal) for recycled water use

28. [ Other:

Last Revised 2/24/2021 Page 17 of 20

Iltem B - 35 of 50



0T 30 81 98ed

(uogeBuym) | (uonebiiiym) (uonebLiim) (uonebiuiym) (uonebiym) | (uoneBriym) (uonebiuym) (uonebruym)
Remyjied
Buideaspuen X Buideospue X Buideospue] X Buidesspue X mc_nuom_oca._ﬁ mc_a_mom_ocm.__N_ Buideaspue X Buidesspue X
(3) sea4) m soad] E (3) seeua). E saal) m_ saal] m (3) seailL m_ (3) seau) m (3) seau] E
aoe|da. pue 2oe|daus pue soe|dal pue aoe|dal pue aoe|dal pue aoe|dal pue aoe|das pue aoejdal pue dwey
anowiey _H_ snowsy [ ] aAoWway _H_ anoway [] enowsy [] snowey ] snoway [] anoway [] $S900Y VAV
MaN _N_ MON _N_ MON m MON E MON _N_ MaN m MOIN E MIN _N_
aoe|dai pue aoe|dal pue 20e|das pue aoejdal pue aoe|dals pue aoedal pue aoe|das pue ooe|dai pue
anoway _H_ anoway D aAoWAY _H_ anoway D aAoWaY _H_ aAoway _H_ anowsy _I||_ anoway D yemapis
MON E MoN E MON E MaN _N MoN m MaN m MBN & MON _N_
aoe|dau pue aoe|dal pue aoejdai pue aoe|dal pue aoe|dal pue aoe|das pue aoe|dal pue aoe|dal pue
anoway _H_ anoway _H_ SNoWDY D anoway _H_ anoway _H_ anoway D anoway _H_ anoWIDY _H_ yoeouddy aaug
MIN E MaN _M MON m MoN E MoN E MON _N_ MON _m MaN E
Bunsixa Bunpsixa Bunsixe Bunsixa punsie Bunsixe Bunsixa Bunsixe oashm_w__w nayp)
Apon [ ] Aypon [] Apon [ Aypony [ ] Apon [ ] Asipoi [ ] Ayipoi [ Ao [ | yuawened 504
MAN D MaN _H_ MBN _H_ MON _H_ MIN _H_ M3N _H_ M3N _H_ MaN _N_
suojisued; (o) suonisues) (g) suonisueay
abejuouy abejuouy abejuosy jJuswaAed juswaned uMoEgmn (v) w:o_u_wcm.u
woq o woy | wogqyowoy |  woqYDwoy | yjog D wouy wmwhm._&\w .,,__w_“ ﬂmwu m_h\w u_o_c ;yzwm ._wo Eo_t ‘Ypou ._\% :__o; i S
" uspl N " usapi r uapl ° uspl
il E 1 0z HSPIM _N_ L el x # 2¢ topi _N_ ¥ ZZ UapIM [ ‘3 0F USpPIM [ ‘3 0 uspIM [X] Y 0y USPIM [X]
swadedsy [ | usweoeday []]| wewsoeidey _|.||_ juswieoeidey [ ] | juswaoeiday[x] | juswaoeidsy [X] | juewsoeidey [ | jusweseidey [X]
aoe(dal pue aoeidal pue aoe|da.) pue aoe|dal pue
anoLway _.|l|_ anoway _H_ anoway _H_ anoway D aoejdal pue aoe|dal pue aoe|das pue aoe|dal pue
pabewep paBewep pabewep pabeuep anoway D SACWIDY D anoway D anoway _H_
age|day _Wlu._ aoejday D aoejday _H_ aoe|day _H_ pabewep pafewep pabewep pabewep Jayng) pue qingy
sopIs sopIs sap|s sepis asoe|day D aoe|doy D aoe|day _H_ aoejdoy _H_
Yyioq /0 wody yioq /0 woly 3oq /0 wody yoq /o wody | /O 3O ISSM /0 jo 1se3 /0 10 yinog /0 40 YHON
WS MON ] | U vE meN [] HZEMON [ | HPZ'MIN[K] | UPZ MmN | WevmoN[X] By MmN [ | H v meN [
SNUAAY SNUBAY ONUBAY aNusAy onuUaAy SNU3AY SNUAAY
paefauin 19xeg 19%eM «Vn 19908 1syuadien anoIn smydAjeong [IMI9 jHaeAccuf

€220Z "ON dey [9o4e4

L1'Z "ON leaoiddy jo suonipuos syuswaaotdwi algqnd
INIINILFVHId ONIYIINIONT

&, LIgIHX3

Iltem B - 36 of 50



0230 61 33ed (oz o3 99s)
o
[essyer] _N_ ujeiq uuolg
letajen _N_ ulep m
[esage [ urein P (22 "o0g 99s)
ressge P ure [ Xo no-uin)
Bunsi sng
eisre %] X ! ed dojs
| ureiy Bunsixa Ajpoy _H_ op
Jesaye] N_ ulepy _M_ Bunsixe Appoin _H_ MaN _M
e m je1ajeT] m urey m Buysixe D Ajpoy D Map E 28g 99s)
1ed A\ ureiy P ) PO (Fz"
Bunsix Ayp moN [X] o [] sans
uiep E uoned0| b 3
. Bunsixe Aypon ] moN ]
| 1}e00j9y _H_ el1bdn
Bunstxa Aypop [ MoN ] eooioy [ ] et eaBl %\soz <
Bupsixa Aypon ] moN ] uon et Fr 1S
Aypo ] N [] g (0 apeibdn 1meN X (42 098 ue
: oN [] " uoneooRy [ | apeibdn 1maN ] Bunsixe m:_n_._umo_ﬂﬂ._.
M yaN LUOJED0|9Y D apeJbdn - | MaN E Bunsixe Aupowy D Buubig
uopedojey [ apesbdn Lt I meN [Y] Buysixe Apon [ ] maN [
uopeooiRY [ | apeubdn 1meN [ Busixe Awpon [ ] maN P (42 098 90s)
2pefdn 7 1MeN ] Bunsixa Aypon [ ] MaN P Bupsixe Eﬁgmﬂh
[ MeN E Bunsixe Aypony _MI_ MaN E Bunsixa &_UOS_ m reuis oy
Bunsixe fipon [ ] "N [ Bugsixo Apon [ ] (2) man [ a0s)
Bunsixe Aypon 7] maN [X] Bupsixe Aypon ] moN [ @z .omwu fooy
L _.IL MeN P Bunsixe Kpow [ maN ] MM P | sogem pei
MaN E Bunsixa Aypoy _H_ MaN E 9IRS E urepy E oxl
Bunsixs Aypon [ meN ] sowss [] urei [ (@z o9s @
Bunsixe AIpo _|||_ MON E - AIAIRS & ule m a2IA19S E 191EM
Ajpoiy _u MBN m L 90IMIRg K ure m CRIINET m urep m
maN [] aamss [ uren [ sapnieg [] urew [X] (5'z ‘o0g 998)
aomos ] e g | B e 7 | 9,088
sainas P uwew [ ] o ] uew [ a1 [X] ¢ e m
uep E [TV ETS] E jed zal UBN ™
99! 2N urepy [esoye E urew m
< ERITNETS _N_ ulepy & [elele D urep E
RoINlesS m urep E [esele] _H_ urep _H_ —= _H_ HonEIoY _H_ JueipAH a1id
urep VNA 4 ; uonesody apesbdn
! esee [ uepy ] ] Bdn N [
4 = uopeoo|oYy apel I 3N [ 1Pl
|edaje] K ulejn K uoneso|ay D apesbdn | MaN m MMWWUCQJ
L] __W__ uten ] uopeooey [ ] apesbdn 1maN ] ue Soetde) n“M_ [ [ pasiey
uei . e|del p anow
uonesoRy [ apeJ6dn I MeN [ ue 29 -
anowey MoN
uopeooiRy [ | apeibdn 3 [N ] deu pue mommﬂhmm L] MaN m AY L iegiAg]dil)
uonesofey [ apesbdn [ meN [] J pue mom_>oEmm _H_ o [X] anua
apeBdn 1 maN [ aoe|do 2 Mo X anuaAy LIS
1#eN [ ooe(das pue onowey [ | MaN[] anuaAy snydAjean3
eoe|des pue RAN R MoN [ ] anuaAy anol9
aoe|dal pue sAoWsYy D MON D Jo)uadien
sheuion ) L ¥ 1990
MoN P anuaAy a)jem
SNUBAY d9)eg
pieAsuip

ltem B - 37 of 50



0T 30 07 93ed

"sjealys asayj Buoje sBulpjing aA1as o} papaau | Ajuo pajjesul aq [|im saul] ando 19414

‘sues|e)

Aq panosdde pue pamalasl 8¢ ISNW SNUSAY PIIINT PUB SNUBAY [[LISA JO UOHISSIAUI BY] Je pajedo] sjuawaacsdwi oignd Jayjo pue uonesijipow Jeubis oljesl
abp3 pooysoqybiaN sapnjou|

‘pROY YdUEY OlIRU() O} SNUSAY [[LIS WOl SapIS Yjoq uo palinbai o ||Im Buluspim juswaned

"spJepue)s Jua1ind 0} dn ybnouq aq o3 pasejdal pue parowal aq 0} palinbal aq |IM Y ‘spiepue)s Juawaaed JUBLIND Y3 YJIM Ju)sSISUo9 jou s| Juawaaed

Bunsixa ay) JI ‘90U ased|d "1op|noys papelb apIm JOO)G B pue SUB| PUNOYUINOS SUO S)ePoLILIOIE 0} /9 WOl) 193) €€ PuaIxa |jeys Bujuapim juawaaed
‘SpJepuels

JuaLIng 0} dn Jybnoig aq o) pacejdes pue pasowial aq 03 palinbal aq {iIm ) ‘spiepuels Juawaaed Jualind sy} YIIM JUS)SISUOD jJou S| Judwaaed Bunsixs ayj
Jl ‘9)ou asesld “JapInoys papelb apim 100J-G B pue ‘BUE| PUNOYISaM U0 ‘Ueipaw padi)s e ajJepoWWOIe 0} /D JO YLOoU }39) GZ pualxsa |jeys Buluapim juswased
‘spaepue)s JuaLn? o3 dn jybnouq aq o3 pase|dal pue parcwal aq 03 pasinbai aq |Im } ‘spiepuels Juswaaed JUSLIND Y)IM JUS}SISUOS Jou SI Juswared

aNUaAY [|IBIA Buisixa ay} I ‘ajou asesdld 'sjuswasosdwll asay; uo oulys jo A9 wouy jeacidde ueyqo Juswaaed ypim [N} Sjewun dyl djepowwioode
0} /D JO YInos 3}93} Of Puajxd [jeys BuluspiIm JUBWIABY "9NUdAY PIjang 0} anuaAy Jajuadies woiyy sapis yjoq uo padinbas aq jiIm Buluapim juawaned

o

O duiuw

v

:9A0(e ‘/]°Z 'OU Wd)l ul pajsi| sjusawanoidwl 10§ sajou ayvadg

sjuswianodiu)
JBUl0
sjuawsaosduy
10 [eAoWaYy
senlinn
ajeoojey _H_ ojeoojay | a1e00|9y _H_ ajeoojey [] sjesojay _H_ ajen0jay D 9jedofRy D sjeooy [ ] pEaYIaA0
punoibiepupn | punoisBispun[<] | punosBispun[X] | punoibiepun[] | PunoiBrepunf] | punosbispunf] | PpunoiBiepunfy] | punoibispun[y]
() (o) (©) 985 828)
saoueuapunddy | seosueusunddy saoueualnddy | sesueusunddy saoueuaunddy | ssoueuspunddy sooueusynddy | seoueusunddy W_umnu_u w._om _m
janpuod (57 | /unpuod [X] Junpuod [57] | jynpuod 5 | /umpuod [ | /anpuod [X] 1unpuod [57 | 1unpuod [ B0 40914
anusAy anuUaAyY anuaAy onuaAy ONUBAY anuaAy ONUAAY
pieAauip Jayeg I [eAA «V» 193138 Jojuadien an0Ig snydAjeang [[FRET juswsacidw]

Iltem B - 38 of 50



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Scott Murphy, Community Development Director
Rudy Zeledon, Pianning Director (Copy of memo only)
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division (Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development
James Caro, Building Official
Khoi Do, City Engineer
Jamie Richardson, Landscape Planning Division
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company
Gabriel Gutierrez, Police Department
Mike Gerken, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Airport Planning
Eric Woosley, Engineering/NPDES
Robin Lucero, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Edmelynne Hutter, Senior Planner
DATE: October 30, 2020
SUBJECT: FILE # PMTT20-010 Finance Acct#:

The following project has been submitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy of
your DAB report to the Planning Department by .
Note: I:] Only DAB action is required

g Both DAB and Planning Commission actions are required

[] only Pianning Commission action is required

[:l DAB, Planning Commission and City Council actions are required

[ only Zoning Administrator action is required
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20273) to subdivide 366.65 gross acres of land
into 22 lots bordered by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north, Carpenter Avenue to the east, Merrill Avenue tot
he south, and Grove Avenue to the west, within the SP/AG {Specific Plan/Agricultural Overlay) zoning
district (APNs: 1054-161-02, 1054-171-01, 1054-171-03, 1054-171-04, 1054-181-01, 1054-181-02,
1054-191-01, 1054-191-02, 1054-361-01, and 1054-361-02). Related File: PSP-18-001.
The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

D No comments

|:] Report attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

Standard Conditions of Approval apply

D The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns,

D The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

Broadband Operations Loleit De Coses  Sr. Systems Analyst  11/04/2020

Department Signature Title Date

Iltem B - 39 of 50


17125
Broken Character
X symbol

17125
Line

17125
Broken Character
X symbol

17125
Line

17125
AMV Blue Signature 2020
Broadband Operations    Robert De Casas    Sr. Systems Analyst       11/04/2020


The City of Ontario is developing a fiber-optic telecommunications system throughout the city
commonly known as OntarioNet. The fiber-optic telecommunications system is capable of
providing advanced Internet/data services to homes and businesses in feasible areas within
the city. OntarioNet will provide community related services including: traffic management;
online civic services; meter reading; educational services; and a variety of other community
services. OntarioNet and the high-speed data services it provides will keep the city on par with
the modern workforce and ever changing lifestyles of the people and the community.

Communication systems proposed for on-site facilities will be placed underground within a
duct and structure system to be installed by the developer. Maintenance of the installed
system will be the responsibility of the City and/or Special District fiber optic entity and not that
of the developer, private homeowners association or private homeowners. Development of the
project requires the installation by the developer of all fiber optic infrastructure necessary to
service the project as a standalone development.

The City requires public utility easement for fiber optics on all private aisles/alley ways.

Trenching, joint trenching, and boring shall be used to install the fiber-optic conduits. Fiber-
optic conduit placement will generally be in a joint trench with Street Light conduits or in a
separate trench/bore and in the Right-of-Way (ROW) generally placed behind the sidewalk.
Resulting conduit placement generally, will be on the north side of street and the east side of
street based on the direction of the street. Properly sized handholes shall be placed along the
conduit path no greater than 500-feet apart in major streets and no greater than 300-feet apart
within in-tract community streets. Handholes shall be strategically placed to allow for efficient
entrance into commercial buildings, and residential properties and multi-dwelling units.

Structured Wiring — An integrated structured wiring system (low-voltage wiring) provides

infrastructure for today’s technology applications and the framework for the future technology

advances. Requirements and benefits of a structured wiring system include:

* Residential (single-family and multi-family), commercial and industrial developments shall

adhere to the City’s Structured Wiring ordinance

Allows for uniform receipt & distribution of technology services

Ensures scalability of wiring for future technology advances

Provides consistent & identical wiring protocols throughout developments

Enables the property infrastructure to interface efficiently with broadband networks for

highest bandwidth capacity

* Adoption of these standards will minimize retrofitting required to ensure new property
owners are capable of the latest technologies and services

Building Entrance (Multi-family and Commercial) - From the nearest handhole to the building
entrance, design and install fiber optic conduit at a minimum depth of 36-inches. Trenching

shall be per City Standard for Commercial Buildings. (1) 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall)
roll pipe (Orange) duct. Install locate/tracer wires minimum 12AWG within conduit bank and
fiber warning tape 18-inch above the uppermost duct

Multi-family and commercial properties shall terminate conduit in an electrical room adjacent to
the wall no less than five inches above the finished floor. A 20" width X length 36" space shall
be reserved on the plywood wall for OntarioNet equipment. This space shall labeled
"OntarioNet Only". Ontario Conduit shall be labeled "OntarioNet"

A minimum 13/16 millimeter microduct joint use telecommunications conduit with pull-rope
from the multi-family or commercial building communal telecomm/electrical room/closet to
each multi-family or commercial building unit shall be installed. See Structured Wiring
Checklist on City’s website for additional details.

Iltem B - 40 of 50



9. A Fiber Optics Improvement Design Plan sheet should be part of the Design Plan submission
and should be provided in digital format (PDF) as well, on future revisions

Iltem B - 41 of 50



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Edmelynne Hutter, Senior Planner
Planning Department

FROM: Mike Gerken, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal
Fire Department

DATE: November 4, 2020

SUBJECT: PMTT20-010 - A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20273) to subdivide 366.65
gross acres of land into 22 lots bordered by Eucalyptus Avenue to the
north, Carpenter Avenue to the east, Merrill Avenue to the south, and
Grove Avenue to the west, within the SP/AG (Specific Plan/Agricultural
Overlay) zoning district (APNs: 1054-161-02, 1054-171-01, 1054-171-03,
1054-171-04, 1054-181-01, 1054-181-02, 1054-191-01, 1054-191-02, 1054-
361-01, and 1054-361-02). Related File: PSP-18-001.

X The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.
X Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below.

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES:

A. 2019 CBC Type of Construction: N/A

w

Type of Roof Materials: N/A

Ground Floor Area(s): N/A

o O

Number of Stories: N/A

m

Total Square Footage: N/A

F. 2019 CBC Occupancy Classification(s): N/A

Iltem B - 42 of 50



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

1.0 GENERAL

X 1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029.
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.”

XI 1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction
drawings.

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS

X 2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide.
See Standard #B-004.

X1 2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be
designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25”) inside and forty-five feet (45°) outside
turning radius per Standard #B-005.

X 2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150°) in length shall
have an approved turn-around per_Standard #B-002.

X 2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four
(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by
fire department and other emergency services.

3.0 WATER SUPPLY

X 3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum
spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.

X 3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES

X 5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and
debris both on and off the site.

[2e0h B - 43 of 50


file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov

X 5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a
position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property. Homes
that do not front street shall be provided with an address entry sign at the street. Address
numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal
Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.

18e0h B - 44 of 50



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: ; :
@ Scott Murphy, Community Development Director

Rudy Zeledon, Planning Director (Copy of memo only)
Diane Ayala, Advanced Planning Division (Copy of memo only)
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development

James Caro, Building Official

Khoi Do, City Engineer

Jamie Richardson, Landscape Planning Division
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utility Company

Gabriel Gutierrez, Police Department

Mike Gerken, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal

Jay Bautista, T. E., Traffic/Transportation Manager
Lorena Mejia, Airport Planning

Eric Woosley, Engineering/NPDES

Robin Lucero, Code Enforcement (Copy of memo only)
Jimmy Chang , IT Department

FROM: Edmelynne Hutter, Senior Planner
DATE: January 13, 2021
SUBJECT: FILE #: PMTT20-010 Finance Acct#:

REVISION NO, .

|

The foliowing project has been resubmitted for review. Please send one (1) copy and email one (1) copy
of your DAB report to the Planning Department by .

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20273) to subdivide 366.65 gross acres of land
into 22 lots bordered by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north, Carpenter Avenue to the east, Merrill Avenue tot
he south, and Grove Avenue to the west, within the SP/AG (Specific Plan/Agricultural Overlay) zoning
district (APNs: 1054-161-02, 1054-171-01, 1054-171-03, 1054-171-04, 1054-181-01, 1054-181-02,
1054-191-01, 1054-191-02, 1054-361-01, and 1054-361-02). Related File: PSP-18-001.
w The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time.

[] No comments

[] see previous report for Conditions

& Report attached (1 copy and email 1 copy)

]:] Standard Conditions of Approval apply

|:| The plan does not adequately address the departmental concerns.

|:| The conditions contained in the attached report must be met prior to scheduling for
Development Advisory Board.

decee Plonae | 1121707

Department Signature - Title

Date
Iltem B - 45 of 50



CITY OF ONTARIO CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Sign Off
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION = 9
303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 e il ‘-'p_“‘ 111212021
Jamie Richardson, Senior Landscape Planner Date
Reviewer's Name: Phone:
Jamie Richardson, Senior Landscape Planner (909) 395-2615
DAB File No.: Related Files: Case Planner:
PMTT20-010 Edmelynne Hutter

Project Name and Location:
Subdivide 366.65 acres into 22 lots
TPM 20273

Applicant/Representative:

Prologis — Siara MacKinney, Westland Group
4150 Concours Street, Suite 100

Ontario, CA 91764

X

A Tentative Tract Map (dated 01/04/2021) has been approved considering that the
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the development plan and the
landscape construction documents.

[

A Tentative Tract Map (dated) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are
required before DAB approval.

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED

Conditions for the Development Plan and Grading/Utility Construction Documents:

1.

2.

Show and identify any on-site stormwater infiltration areas or stormwater infiltration devices

proposed in parkways or other landscape areas.

Stormwater infiltration basins shall be no greater than 40% of the landscape area to allow for

ornamental landscape. Provide a minimum 4’ wide level grade adjacent to sidewalks for

pedestrian safety and adjacent to parking areas for vehicle overhang and screening landscape.
For example, a 25’ wide landscape area allows for a 10’ wide basin or swale. Show outlines of
basin or swale at top of slope.

Basins shall be incorporated in the overall project and promote high-quality landscape design;
avoid fences and rock bottoms. Basins shall utilize trees and landscaping on the outer edges
and side slopes of the basins, dry/wet stream beds and provide appropriate plant material to
encourage habitat and provide signage to educate the community on these spaces. Work with
the Landscape Planning Division on overall design of the basins.

Restrictions for the north east corner of Grove Ave and Merrill Ave may limit the use of trees
based on height requirements from the Chino Airport to the west. Consider relocating any
infiltration basins outside of these limits to allow for landscaping and trees required for basins
or propose underground chambers in this area.

Locate utilities to minimum clearances to allow parkway trees. Parkway trees are to be 30’
apart and where residential driveways occur, a maximum 45’ apart. Show and note a 10’
parkway tree space, 5 clearance each side of the tree from any utility or hardscape including
water, sewer, drain lines and driveways, and min. 10’ clear from street lights.

Iltem B - 46 of 50



6. Note for compaction to not be greater than 85% at landscape areas; all finished grades 1 %’
below finished surfaces; landscaped slopes to max 3:1.

7. Landscape island fingers are required in parking areas; one island finger for every five spaces
double row and one island finger for every ten spaces single row.

8. Show or note transformers shall be in planter areas and set back 3’ from paving for small
transformers less than 4’ high and 5’ setback for large transformer greater than 4’ high. Locate
on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans.

9. Show or note backflow devices shall be in planter areas and set back min 3’ from paving
Locate on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans.

10. Show light standards 15’ away from required tree locations.

11. Wall footings shall not restrict landscape; max 12” in front of footing with 12” of cover.

12. Show on plans step-outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters; 12” wide monolithic curb, 12”
compacted decomposed granite or pavers adjacent to the 6” curb.

13. Provide enhanced paving at entries.

14. Provide an outdoor employee area with places to sit and shade trees or structures.

15. Provide a tree inventory for existing trees include genus, species, trunk diameter, canopy
width, and condition. Show and note existing trees in good condition to remain and note trees
proposed to be removed. Include existing trees within 15’ of adjacent property affected by new
walls, footings, or on-site tree planting. Add tree protection notes on construction and demo
plans.

16. Add notes for any tree removal to occur outside of typical nesting season (February 1 through
August 31) or per the specific plan EIR mitigation Measures.

Once items are complete, you may email an electronic set to
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

ltem B - 47 of 50


mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov

AIRPORT LAND Use COMPATIBILITY PLANNING NTARIG=

AIRPORT PLANNING

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

PrOjeCt File No.: PMTT20-010 Reviewed By:
Address: North East Corner of Merrill Avenue & Grove Avenue Lorena Mejia
APN: 1054-161-02, 1054-141-01, 3 & 4, 1054-181-01 & 2, 1054-361-01 & 2 Contact Info:
Existing Land  Vacant 909-395-2276
Use:

Project Planner:
Proposed Land Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 366 acres into 22 Lots Edmelynne Hutter
Use:

Date- 2/18/2021
Site Acreage:  366.65 Proposed Structure Height: N/A :

. . CDNo.. 2020-033 Rev. 1
ONT-IAC Project Review: n/a
. n/a

Airport Influence Area: ONT & Chino BTN

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones:

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification
O Zone 1 O 75+ dB CNEL High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement
Dedication
O Zone 1A () 70-75dBCNEL FAA Notification Surfaces Recorded Overflight
) i Notification
O Zone 2 65 - 70 dB CNEL Airspace Obstruction
Surfaces / Real Estate Transaction
Zone 3 60 - 65 dB CNEL . - Disclosure
Airspace Avigation
O Zone 4 Easement Area
Allowable
O Zone 5 Height: 200 FT +

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones:
/ Zone 1 / Zone 2 / Zone 3 / Zone 4 O Zone 5 / Zone 6

Allowable Height: 50 - 115 FT

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

This proposed Project is: O Exempt from the ALUCP O Consistent @ Consistent with Conditions O Inconsistent

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

The project is located within Chino Airport Influence Area and located within Safety Zones 1, 2, 3, 4 & 6 and was

evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for Chino provided the following conditions are met. See attached comments.

ooy

Page 1 Form Updated: March 3, 2016
ltem B - 48 of 50

Airport Planner Signature:




AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING — [lCSeiziiElia

PALU No.:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION REPORT

ProJECT CONDITIONS

Tentative Parcel Map Comments

1. No buildings or structures shall be built within Safety Zone 1, which is located within portions of Parcels 2, 3 and 4
as delineated on Sheet 1 and 5 of Tentative Parcel Map No. 20273.

2. The portion of Merrill Avenue located within Safety Zone 1 must remain clear of permanent aboveground objects.
The developer shall coordinate with Chino Airport and FAA to determine allowable heights and structures permitted
within Safety Zone 1 near the Grove Avenue/Merrill Avenue intersection such as Traffic signals and street lights. The
applicant shall file for an Obstruction Evaluation with the FAA and receive a Determination of No Hazard prior for
permit issuance of any street improvements (street lights/traffic signals/street trees).

3. Wildlife can pose hazards to aircraft operations; collisions or “strikes” with wildlife can cause damage to or destroy
aircraft and result in injuries or fatalities to air travelers and those on the ground. The FAA identifies stormwater
management facilities as one of the greatest attractants to hazardous wildlife. Many species are attracted to open water
features and associated vegetation that offers water, food, and shelter. Whenever possible, new stormwater
management facilities located within the AIA should be designed to avoid the creation of open water and habitat.

If new detention basins are required, they should be designed to drain completely within a maximum 48-hour period
following design storm event (i.e., 24-hour storm) and remain totally dry between storm events.

Exposed surface water features should include one of the recommended design measures: floating covers, bird balls,
netting, or overhead wires should be installed to deter wildlife. The deterrent should be selected based on pond size
and the type of species to be discouraged.Steep-sided, rip-rap lined, narrow, linearly shaped water detention basin
(i.e., 1:1 slopes) should be provided; and Vegetation should not be provided because it can provide food or cover for
hazardous wildlife. Stormwater management plans located within the Chino AIA shall be reviewed by an FAA-
qualified Airport Wildlife Biologist.

4. The Tentative Parcel Map is impacted by Safety Zones 1, 2, 3, 4 and 6 (see attached exhibit) and all future
Development Plans shall be required to be consistent with the Chino Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan that
includes Open Land and Land Use Intensity requirements.

5. Open Land must have a minimum dimensions of (75 feet by 300 feet). Open Land area must be free of structures
and other major obstacles such as walls, large trees or poles (greater than 4 inches in diameter, measured 4 feet above
the ground), and overhead wires.

6. The pro ect site is located within an area where 50 115 foot building heights are allowed. Allowable building
heights gradually increase from the southwest to the northeast corner of the pro ect site. iven its close proximity to
Chino Airport the applicant will be required to file for an FAA Obstruction valuation Airport Airspace Analysis
(FAA Form 7460 1) for all future buildings and for any temporary construction equipment such as cranes and receive
a etermination of No azard prior to scheduling any public hearings.

7. The planting palette will need to include tree species that will not grow to a mature height that would create future
hazards to aircraft in flight.

Page 2 Form Updated: March 3, 2016
Item B - 49 of 50



—r BT

ite Saer ne

e AT A

irport Compos

[ T

| Chi

INO

A

.." K .Iw«f%m@mwm

CINCONEENC T NG NN

rF‘;’...!ﬂHP‘J

i ]
. TR }
henis !
e i Jrﬁl — -, T T, W T ..
i % M 5 "
= i l.:. R e
= e b i N e \
A .

S — W W — —

‘H..H..rﬂrdﬂ!.@ﬁ? O\

i »
|_'-_- E

i’ﬁ‘ﬂfiﬁ‘g&r‘ .

S Y RN TR N ...'.. b

L

&2 XEICKN

Al Q}fwa, &P& N

..ﬂ.‘b - TN

i A
A

P

remee: il

-

' Chino Airport Safety Zones

Project Site

Iltem B - 50 of 50




	20210301 DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	March 1, 2021
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Community Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Mike Gerken, Fire Department


	20210301 Item A DAB Minutes
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT VIA ZOOM
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT VIA ZOOM
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20210301 Item B PMTT20-010 (TPM 20273)
	20210301 File No. PMTT20-010 Merrill Commerce Center^01 AR
	20210301 File No. PMTT20-010 Merrill Commerce Center^02 Attachment A - Planning COA
	20210301 File No. PMTT20-010 Merrill Commerce Center^03 Attachment A - Other Dept. COAs
	PMTT20-010 Rev1.pdf
	PMTT20-010 (TPM 20273) SWC of Grove and Eucalyptus Ave_Broadband COA.pdf
	PMTT20-010 Fire Conditions 2020-11-04.pdf





